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Independent Auditors' Report

The Honorable Chairman and
Members of the Board of Trustees

Warren County Community College
Washington, New Jersey

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying basic financial statements of the Warren County Community College

(the "College") a component unit of the County of Wa:ren, as of and for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2017

à¿ ZOIO, *¿-tft. relâted notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the College's basic

financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

Mønagement's Responsíbilíty for the Fínøncíal Støtements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in

u""ord-"" with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the

design, implementation, anã maittienao"" of intemal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation

of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

A udìtors' Re sp o nsibilitY

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audits. We conducted our

audits in accordan"e *ith auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, the

standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the

ComptrolleiGeneral of the United States, and audit requirements as prescribed by the Office of Management

and Èudget, Department of the Treasury, State of New Jersey. Those standards require that we plan and

perform ttt" u.tdit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from

material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the

financial statements. the procódures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of
the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those

risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the College's preparation and fair

presentation of the frnancial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the

ãirrrr-rt*.es, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the College's internal

control. Accordingly, *" e*pr"ss no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting policies used and the reasonableness of signifrcant accounting estimates made by managemento as

well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

V/e believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is suffrcient and appropriate to provide a basis for our

audit opinions.

www.ntsvoccla.com
lndependent Member of BKR lnternat¡onal
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Members of the Board of Trustees
Wa:ren County Community College
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Opíníons

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial

positiorrof the Wa:ren County Community College, in the County of Wa:ren, as of June 30,2017 and20l6,
*¿ tft" respective changes in financial position, and cash flows thereof for the frscal years then ended in

accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Other Møtters

Required Supplementary Information

Acco¿nting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management's

discussion and analysis,which follows this report and the pension schedules and related notes be presented to

supplement the baiic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial

stát^ements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential

part of financial ieporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic,

ãr historical context. Wé have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information

in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of
inquiries of management atout the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for
consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other

knowledgé we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or

provide *y urr*-ce on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufftcient

evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Other Inþrmation

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively

comprise the College's basic financial statements. The accompanying schedules of expenditures of federal

and it¿te awards, as required by Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniþrm Administrative

Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements þr Federal Awørds; and New Jersey's OMB

Circular 15-08, Single ,luàit foticy for Recipients of Federal Grants, State Grants and State Aid, are

presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements.

The accompanying schedules of expenditures of federal and state awards are the responsibilþ of

-*ug.-.rit and were derived from and relate directþ to the underlying accounting and other records used

to prepare the basic financial st¿tements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures

uppfi"ã in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing

anã reconciling such information directly to the underþing accounting and other records used to prepare the

basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in

accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the

schedules of expenditures of federal and state awards are fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to

the basic financial statements as a whole.
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Other Reporting Required by Government Audítíng Standørds

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated December 22,

2017 on our consideration of the College's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters.

The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting

and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial

reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards in considering the College's internal control over financial reporting and

compliance.

Mt. Arlington, New Jersey
December 22,2017

NISIVOCCIA LLP
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FY17 MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
(Unaudited)

This Management Discussion and Analysis (MD & A) of Warren County Community College's

(.,College', or ,'WCCC") financial performance provides an overall review of the College's

financial activities for the fiscal year ending June 30,2017. The intent of this discussion and

analysis is to look at the College's financial performance as a whole; readers also should review

the financial statements, the notes to the financial statements and any management

recommendations to enhance their understanding of the College's financial performance. This

document is preparedby WCCC and represents management's interpretation of the financial data.

It has not been audited by Nisivoccia LLP.

Overvíew of the Finøncíal Støtements

The College's audit is prepared under the standards prescribed by the Governmental Accounting

StandardsÞoard (GAS^B), which sets guidelines for financial reports prepared for public entities.

The financial statements prescribed by GASB incorporate three statements:

o Statement ofNet Position
o Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position

o Statement of Cash Flows

These statements, which follow in the presentation, demonstrate the net value of assets and the

results of the College's operations, respectively, ori a college-wide basis. All statements are

prepared using thJ accrual basis of accounting similar to the accounting used by most

private-sector òompanies. This basis of accounting takes into account all of the current year's

i"ro"n r., and expeises regardless of when cash is received or paid. The audit performed by

Nisivoccia LLp ãlso incluães a series of notes to accompany the financial data, and an audit of
federal awards and state financial assistance, which is required by both federal and state entities.

Net Pension Liability

Beginning in Fy2015, GASB required public entities to reflect future pension liabilites in its

financial statements. 
'Waren County Cómmunity College's employees participate in either the

Alternate Benefits program (ABp), *hich is a defined contribution plan and therefore has no future

pension obligations toìhe College, or the Public Employees Retirement System (PERS), which is

ä defined beñefit plan. V/CCC makes annual contributions for its PERS employees in acccordance

with actuarial estimates prepared for the NJ Division of Pensions. In order to reflect potential

future pension liabilities in the College's financial statements, the Division of Pensions has

provided data on future pension liabilitiès. For purposes of better reflecting the College's financial

position, this Managemènt Discussion and Analysis will show the pension liability separately.

The information that follows is a discussion of each of the main components ofthe financial report.
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Støtement of Net Posìtíon: Colleee Funds

The Statement of Net Position includes assets, liabilities, deferred inflows and outflows, and the

resulting net position of the College. WCCC's assets are classified as either current or non-current
(capital) assets. Liabilities represent future commitments that the College has made that must be

recognized as a future expense. These liabilities can be either short-term or long-term.

The College's net position is derived by calculating the difference between assets/deferred

outflows and liabilities/deferred in-flows. The net position indicates both capital assets and fund
assets. As the WCCC Foundation does not hold capital assets, the Foundation's net position

represent fund assets only.

The chart below shows total and net position for the College (exclusive of its component group,

the WCCC Foundation). The overall College net position as of June 30, 2017 , exclusive of the

state net pension liability, was $21.1 million. The overall College net position as of June 30,2017,
inclusive of the state net pension liability, was $16.7 million.

Statement of Net Position: Collese X'unds Excludins Pension Funds (Rounded $000)

ChangeTotal Assets

Current Assets

Capital Assets

Total Assets

Net Position

FYl7
5,636

16.518

22,154

F'Y16

5,596

t7.486
23,081

40

(e68)

(e28)

Less Liabilities:
Current Liabilities

Non-Current Liabilities (College)

Total, Liabilities

891

136

r,027

1,047

t36
1,183

0

21,127 21,899

(156)

(772)

Net Position (Excluding Pension)

InvesÍnent in capital 16,518 17,486 (968)

Restricted 26 25 1

Unrestricted-Designated 3,522 3,322 20I

Unrestricted-Undesignated 1.061 1.066 (6)

Total Net Position 21,127 21,899 (772)

In order to understand the College's financial position, it is important to review each category of
the net position statement: current assets, capital assets, liabilities, deferred inflows, deferred

outflows and net position. The above chart is on a budgetary basis and does not include the net
pension liability of the College which are required to be reported on a GAAP basis. T\e2017 net
pension liability of the College was $6,969,306. Had the net pension liability and the related

deferred inflows and outflows for pensions been included in the chart above, the total net position
would have reduced the net position by $5,520,679.

( 56)
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Current Assets

Current assets include cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable, inventory and prepaid

expenses. As the chart on the prior page indicates, the College's current assets increased in FY17

toã level just over $5.6 million. This change represents an increase in the cash position in FYl7,
largely due to the drawdown of one-time grant funds at the end of the fiscal year.

Capital Assets

Capital assets include facilities, building improvements, computers, furnishings and equipment

and fixtures. The College's capital assets were just over $16.5 million by the end of FY17'

representing a $967,805 decrease from the prior year.

The change in capital assets by category is shown below.

Capital Assets (in $000)
l Year

Change
(1)

t7
(78)

0
(61)

FYl7
2,037

1,449

1,973

2t.092
26,550

FY16
2,037

t,432
2,05t

21..092

26,612

Asset Tvne

Computers & Equipment

Furniture & Fixtures

Building Improvements

Building
Total

Less Accumulated

Depreciation (10,032) (9,126) (e07)

(e68)Net Capital Assets 16,518 17,486

The change in net capital assets from FY16 to FY17 is related to both depreciation and the deletion

of assets. Part of the asset deletions include the removal of the modular facility and the

improvements within this facility. The removal occurred to make room for the new Building

,¡rn^-nex slated to begin construction in early spring 2018. The modular facility was no longer

suitable for classroom needs and had been used primarily for adjunct offices. These offrces were

relocated to the main facility for the 2017-18 academic year.

The value of capital assets is important for a number of institutions as they can be leveraged for

borrowing purpõr"r (issuance of debt). However, in the case of WCCC, under state statute the

College is unable to issue bond funds. Bonds for V/CCC may be issued by state or county

governments and certain public authorities.

Current Liabilities

Also displayed in the Statement of Net Position are liabilities. Liabilities may be current or non-

current (reflecting commitments to be realized in future years). Current liabilities include

upcoming salary and vendor payments for services already incurred during the fiscal year, as well
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as unearned tuition revenue and an accrual to cover eamed employee vacation time. Current

liabilities were $890,616 as of June 30,2017. This is a decrease from the FY16 level, attributed

to a reduction in open purchase orders. The ratio ofcurrent assets to current liabilities increased

from 5.3/l to 6.311in FYl7, indicative of the College's strong financial position at that time.

Long-Term Liabilities

The long-term liability of the College is the sick time and is actually an expense of the College.

This reflects potential sickJeave payouts for faculty members. WCCC offers a sick leave payout

of up to $8,000 for facuþ who have served for ten years in a full-time position and have provided

one year's advance notice of retirement. The total set aside for this liability for FYl7 is $136,000,

representing the maximum allocation available for eligible employees.

Other long term liabilities reflected on the financial statements include the State of New Jersey net

pension liability. In order to indicate the College's financial position, this MD & A statement

discusses state pension funds separately.

Net Position

The final component ofthe Statement of Net Posítionisthe College's netposition. Conceptually,

the net position is total assets less total liabilities. Net position includes capital assets, such as

buildings and equipment, as well as non-capital assets (such as cash, investments, pre-payments

and reõeivables). Non-capital net position is classified on the next page as "restricted,"

"designated'o or "unrestricted." Note the data and this section does not include the NJ Pension

liability, which will be discussed in a later section.

The table on the next page displays the College net position (exclusive of Capital Assets the net

liability for the PERS Pension and wccc Foundation funds) by category.

(Jndesignated net positionpertainto the aggregate of residual funds that are neither restricted nor

designited at this time. Note that in the combined Statement of Net Position, the categories of
designated and unrestricted are combined together as o'LJnrestricted." Undesignated funds as of
613012017 decreased to $1,060,533, representing 10.7% of FY17 expenses (excluding

depreciation). This is consistent with the Board's annual goal of maintaining a set-aside of
approximately l0Yo-12%o of expenses for contingency needs. This level is also in accordance with
thè expectations of the College's accreditor, the Middle State's Commission on Higher Education.

Designated funds represent resources allocated by the Board of Trustees for specific projects.

Designated funds as of 613012017 were just over $3.5 million. Some of the designated projects are

currently underway (such as the Building Annex, Sidewalk Project and CarpetingÆumishings, the

Renewal and Replacement Plan and Middle States/Assessment). Other projects are anticipated to

be underway no later than summer 2018 (such as the Phillipsburg Boiler Project, and the new

refreshment of technology (including a new firewall). In addition, funds have been targeted to

assist the College with its transition to reduced revenues from rental income during FYl8, resulting

from the reduction of rental income in the Phillipsburg Education Center.
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Also under designated funds is a set-aside for the Building Annex. As part of the GO grant, WCCC

must also match at least $800,000 in expenses. These funds have been set aside in the Building

Annex designation. Any additional funds for the project may be reallocated from the exterior

walkways pioject. These funds will be used for any additional sidewalk or patio alternatives from

the Building Annex project.

The final component of net position ís restricted net position The funds in this category represent

resources held by the College on behalf, of student clubs and organizations. Restricted College

funds include fund raising revenues from student organizations as well as the WWII & Holocaust

Grant.

Colleee Net Position lExcludine Capital Assets and Pension Fundsì lRounded $000ì

UndesignøÍed

Designafed: Operatìng

Phillipsburg Stabilization

FY16 Budget

Academic Student Programming

Pathways/Salary Grant

Middle States/Assessment

Presidential Priorities

Designafed: Current Proiects

R & R Projects/Study

Phillipsburg Boiler Proj ect

Computers/Technology

Carpeting/Furnishings

Exterior Walkways

Sidewalk Project

Roof Repairs

Building Annex

Total, Designated

Restrücted (Student Clabs)

F"Y17

1,061

430

235

t6
103

25

75

FYl6
1,066

430

235

29

167

25

50

Chanse

0

0

( 13)

(64)

0

25

(6)

233

313

660

121

135

60

27t
796

3,522

26

2t8
294

487

12t
220

60

t21
864

3,322

25

l5
l9

t72

0

(84)

0

150

(éÐ
201

I

Støtemeryt of NetAssets: I/CCC Foundøtìon

The WCCC Foundation (,'Foundation") is considered a component unit of WCCC as the College's

Board approves Foundation Board members and College employees oversee the operations of the

Foundatión. The Statement of Net Position for the Foundation component unit is shown on the

next page.
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WCCC Foundation Net Position (in Rounded $0001

Total Assets

Liabilities

Net Position

Net Position

Restricted

Unrestricted

Total Net Position

FYl7
1,148

25

1,123

57r

552

1,123

F'Y16

l,ll2
35

1,077

54r

s36

1,077

Change

(10)

31

T6

%o Chanee

3.2%

-29.3%

4.3o/"

s.7%

2.9%

4.3'¡h

36

46

46

From FY16 to FYl7, the net assets of the Foundation increased by $46,068. During FY17, the

Foundation allocated funds to support various college priorities, including marketing needs and

the renovation of space in the Phillipsburg Education Center for the GED program, which the

College will assume formally in July 2018.

Note that the V/CCC Foundation does not own any capital assets.

Støtement of Revenues, Exnonses ønd Change in Net Posítíon: College Funds

The next statement in the financial report is the Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in

Net Position (SRECNP). The SRECNP provides information about the College's revenues and

expenses to explain key changes in the College's financial position.

The SRECNP displays both operating and non-operating revenues. WCCC's operating revenues

primarily are student revenues (tuition and fees) and government grants (primarily financial aid).

Non-operating revenues comprise state and local appropriations, including capital appropriations.

The SRECNP expenses for College funds (excluding Foundation andpension expenses) are shown

on the next page. As in prior years, total expenses exceeded total revenues in FYIT due to

depreciation expenses. Depreciation is recorded to indicate the potential agingof capital facilities

(equipment, fumiture and fixtures, building improvements and buildings).
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Statement of Revenuesn Expense and Changes in Net Position (College) @ounded $000)

FY17 FY16 Change 7o Chanse

Operatins Revenues

Student tuition and fees

Federal grants and contracts

State/ local grants and contracts

Other

Total Operating Revenues

Non-ODerating Revenues

State appropriations

State ABP
County appropriations

Misc./Investment Income

Total Non-Operating Revenues

3,501

1,r82
654

391
5.782

4,158

1,303

670

546

6.677

2,273

212

2,009
60

4.554

(656)
(r21)

(16)
(1 s5)
(e48)

(24)
I

t47
2l

134

-r5.8%
-93%
-2.4%

-28.4%

-14.2%

2,249
214

2,156
81

4.699

-t.t%
0.6%

7.3%

35.5%

3.2%

Total Revenues 10.428 tl.23l (803) -7.2%

Total Expenses 1r"200 rr.604 (404) -3.5%

Change in Net Position (777) (373) (303) -81.2%

Operating Revenues

Total Fy17 College operating revenues were $948,145 below the FYl6 level. This decrease

primarily reflects ã reduction in non-credit revenues, particularly customized training revenues,

and a drop in federal grants.

Student tuition andfees represented just over $3.5 million of the total operating revenue in

Fy17, down from ápproximately $4.2 million in FY16. The primary reduction is related

to a decline in custõmized training revenues. There is a corresponding decrease in

customized training expenses. Note that in the SRECNP, student tuition and fees paid

through financial ui¿ n nds are shown under their funding source (federal or state grants).

Federal grants declined in FY17, reflecting a reduction in federal Pell grant funds as well

as the .ttãittg of the Federal Health Professions Operating Grant (IIPOG) in early FY16.

Most of the federal grant funds now represent Pell Grant revenues'

State grantfunds declines slightþ in FYl7. These funds represent both state financial aid

revenues and one-time capital revenues from the State's Higher Education Technology

Infrastructure and the Equþment Leasing Fund grants. These grants were closed and all

funds drawn down as of MaY 2017.

Other revenues include rental payments, bookstore commission income and student club

income. Much of the decrease in this category reflects a $138,666 reduction in rental

income due to the relocation of the Phillipsburg Board of Education from the PEC to a new
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location in March 2017. The NJ Department of Labor will assume tenancy in a portion of
this space during FY18. In the meantime, the College has designated funds (Phillipsburg

Stabilization Funds) to ease the transition to lower rental payments in FYl8 and FYl9.

Other revenues also reflect a $16,000 reduction in bookstore revenues. On-campus

bookstores have been steadily declining in use as students seek other options for textbooks,

such as book rental or procurement through on-line vendors. The College has reduced its

expectations for Commission revenue from Follett Bookstores in FYl8.

Gross Tuition and Fee Revenues

The SRECNP displays tuition and fees by funding source. Tuition and fees paid by state and

federal financial aid funds are categorized under state or federal grants. This means that if a student

receives a Pell üffit, the revenue is recorded as federal funds, rather than tuition and fees. The

next display shows total (gross) tuition and fee revenues for FYl6 and FYl7.

Gross Tuition and Fee Revenues @ounded $000)

Credit Tuition and Fees

Revenue-Non-Credit Programs

Customized Training
Revenue-Skylands

Bad Debt Expenses (Prior Debt)

Total

Audited Credits
Per Credit Charges

F'Yl7
4,242

445

165

110
(.72)

4,890

T'Y16 Change
(47)
(67)

(s5 1)

110

13)
(ss8)

Change
-t.r%

-r3.0%
-77.0%
100.0%

s.0%
-r0.3%

4,289
sll
7t6

0

(éÐ
5,448

As the chart above indicates, there was a slight decrease in credit tuition and fees, reflecting an

enrollment reduction coupled with a 4o/o increase in per credit charges. Non-credit revenues

declined in part due to the elimination of the federal IIPOG program, which provided scholarship

support to students in non-credit programs. The largest decrease in gross tuition and fee revenues

relates to customized training. This is due to the discontinuance of training for Verizon employees.

A new revenue source for the FYl7 relates to the Sþlands Professional Training (SPT) activities.

SPT is a partnership between WCCC and Sussex County Community College (SCCC) for the

delivery of continuing education programs and services in Sussex County. In its first year, SPT

grorr.d $110,468 in revenues, with net revenue totaling 537,082. Net revenues are split evenly

between V/CCC and SCCC per the agreement between the two colleges.

Audited credit hours remained relatively flat from FY16 to FY17. This was due to an increase in
the dual enrollment (high school) program, which offset most of the reduction in campus credit

enrollment.
F'Yl7

37,r41
s1s3.00

FY16
37,598

$147.00

Change o/" Chanee
(4s7) -r%

$ 6.00 4%
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Per credit tuition and fee charges rose $6 per credit in FY17, which is in keeping with the College's

efforts to implement small, incremental increases to offset enrollment changes.

Non-Operating Revenues

State and county appropriations, along with investment income, are classified as non-operating

revenue. As a public county college, WCCC relies on these annual subsidies to meet its operating

needs, as state and county funds account for nearly 45o/o of the College's unrestricted expenses.

County operating fundíng was $2,031,127 in FYl7, an increase of $21,933 from the

previous year. In addition, the County reimbursed the College $125,000 in capital funds

for the summer 2016 parking lot replacement. This brought the total FY17 County support

to 52,156,125.

At the February 2017 Board of School Estimate Meeting, the Warren County Board of
Chosen Freeholders approved $500,000 in capital funds to support the new Building
Annex. These capital funds will be drawn down as needed to cover the project during

FYl8 and FYl9.

The State appropriation of 52,248,599 reflects a slight decrease from the FYl6 level. St¿te

funding is determined by a funding formula that considers several factors, including

enrollment. The sector appropriation for the County Colleges has not changed in over a

decade and remains at $134 million.

State Alternate Benefit Funding (ABP) is a reimbursement for state pension contributions

for eligible employees. These reimbursements are based on actual pension payments made

by the College on behalf of its employees into the ABP program.

Miscellaneous revenue includes testing fees, miscellaneous facility rental income and

investment income. The increase in this account reflects revenue from the Seton Hall
facility rental for their Master's program and a reimbursement from the Warren County

Community College Foundation for renovation expenses related to the new GED

classrooms at the Phillipsburg Education Center.

Operating Expenses by Functional Spending Categories

Expenses related to the operation of the College can be displayed by the functional categories

unlque to college and universities. The chart on the next page shows expense by functional

categories for both FY16 and FY17.

As the chart indicates, total FY 17 expenses (exclusive of the NJ net pension liability) decreased

by 3.5% from FY16 to FYl7. Excluding depreciation, the actual operating firnd decrease was

6.s%.
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Expenses by Functional Categories (Rounded $000)

Categorv
Instruction
Institutional Support

Public Service

Academic Support

Physical Plant

Student Support

Capital Expense

Scholarships/Aid
Debt Service

Subtotal

Depreciation/Deletions

Total

Fr17
3,923

2,048
490

r,192
1,249

766
99

t45
27

9,939

FYl6
4,556
2,030

577

1,130

1,216

830

I4
249

27

10,628

Chanse
(633)

18

(87)

63

JJ

(64)
85

(103)

0
(68e)

7o Chanee
-r3.9%

0.9%
-t5.0%

s.6%
2.7%

-7.7%

6273%
-4r.5%

0.0%
-6.5o/"

1,26\ 976

llo604
286

(404)
29.3%

-3.5o/o11,200

The largest decrease in FY17 was under the category of Instruction, which declined by

$33,490. Most of this reduction is attributed to the decline in customized training and non-

credit instruction related to the discontinuance of Verizon customized training courses in

FYl6. There a few other adjustments of note: an increase in faculty overhead, partially

offset by the reduction of one Teaching Administrator. This category includes the most

college employees and reflects an increase in employee health benefits premiums.

The reduction in ScholørshìpdAid reflects the ending of the HPOG program, which

provided health care training to Continuing Education students in September 2016. This

itatewide grant, in which V/CCC was a participant, was not renewed by the federal

government. The Student Support reduction reflects the reduction of one full-time
position.

There were several areas of increase. Capital expenses reflects professional services

(architect and engineer) used for FY17 andthe upcoming capital project (Building Annex).

A position relocation is primarily responsible for the increase in Acødemic Support and

the decrease in Public Service. T\e Physical Plant increase reflects the replacement of a
position in security, offset by some reductions. The increase in Institutìonal Support

primarily reflects pension expense increases (pension costs are not distributed by function).

The College pays a small amount for Debt Service. This is related to the College's

Equipment Leasing Fund grant (ELF). The College is obligated to pay 25%o of the annual

debt service for grant funds received under the ELF grant.

The largest category of increase is in Deprecíøtíon This category reflects the annual

depreciation expense for V/CCC capital assets. In addition, at the end ofFYl T,the College

removed the modular trailers support the new Building Annex, which will be constructed

in that general area. This capital asset, along with its related improvements needed to be

deleted from the College's books.
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Expenses by Natural Spending Categories

Expenses also can be categorized by "natural" groupings that reflect spending type. These

expenses for College funds (excluding State Pension Funds and the Foundation) are shown below.

Expenses by Natural Category (Rounded $000)

CategorY
Employee Salaries

Employee Fringe Benefits

Total Employee Salaries & Benefits

Non-Salaries
Materials and Supplies

Services

Cus t omized Tr ainin g/SP T
Computing/Equipment
Ut il it ie s /I nsur anc e/ Maintenanc e.

Scholarships

Other
Subtotal, Non-Salaries

Total, Operating Expenses

Capital/Depreciation

Total

9,789 10,595 (806)

1,384 1,009 375

tl,l73 11,604 (431)

FY17
5,211

1.882

7,093

356
3r8
211

591

1,061

145

t2
2,696

F'Yl6
5,379

1.859

7,238

392

334

670

628

1,071

249
T2

3,356

Change
(168)

23

(145)

%o Chanse
-3.t%
1.2%

-2.00h

-9.2%

-4.7%

-68.4%

-6.0%

-0.9%

-4r5%
0.0%

-19.7%

-7.60/0

37.2%

-3.7V"

(36)

(r6)
(4s8)

(38)
(10)

(103)

a
(661)

The largest segment of operating costs are employee costs, which totaled $7.1 million in
FYl7. These represent 72% of the College's operating expenses. Employee Salørìes

decreased by 5168,218, reflecting salary tumover and various savings from not filling
vacancies. Even though salary expenses decreased, Employee Frìnge Beneftts costs

actually increased slightly in FY17 due to health benefit and net pension liability.

The largest decrease in expenses was in the non-salary categories, which declined a total

ß.9%.r Nearly all categories of non-salary expenses declined.

The largest area of decline was in Customízed Traìnìng expenses. This decline was

partially offset by new expenses (and revenues) generated by Sþlands Professional

Training. As noted previously, scholarship expenses declined due to the elimination of the

HPOG grant. The decrease ln Møterìøls ønd Supplíes largely reflects fewer mailings as

the College is able to communicate with current students electronically.

I By statute, WCCC is required to report annually on legal expenses and on any expenses for public relations firms.

Legal expenses were $36,182 and $89,204 and $32,871 respectively, for FYl7, FYl6 and FYl5. Public relations

expenses were $15,300 and $15,300, respectively, for FYIT and FYl6.
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Computing/Equípment costs were lower due to a reduction in the contract for external

computing services.

The increase in the depreciation expense was discussed under functional expense changes.

Ststement of Revenues ønd Expenses: WCCC Foundat¡on

Revenues and expenses for the WCCC Foundation, a component unit within the College's
financial statement, are shown below.

Statement of Revenues, Expense and Changes in Net Position (Foundation)
(Rounded $000)

FYl7 FYl6 Change
Foundation Revenues

Fundraising
Other
Total Revenues

98
38

t36

101

23
124

(3)
15

t2

Foundation Expenses ll8 2l

Increase in Net Position 18

Total Foundation revenues for FY17 were 5136,191 including $81,473 in fundraising revenues

from the Golf Tournament, Comedy Night and the Warren County Hall of Fame. The balance of
income represents restricted scholarship income, investment income andrcalized/unrealized gains

on investments. Expenses of $118,498 included $38,590 in direct fundraising costs and S20,063

in scholarship payments. The WCCC Foundation also supported several key college commitments

in FYl7, including allocations for the Renovation of Classrooms to host the Warren County GED
program, support of the PTK program and K-12 sponsorships.

Støtement of Cøsh Flows

The third financial statement included in the audit is the Statement of Cash Flows. This statement

documents the actual outlay and receipt of cash and cash equivalents of the College and reconciles

the decreases in cash in accordance with GASB reporting. As this schedule notes, the overall cash

position was $5,673 ,604 atthe close of FY17.

This increase reflected a change in the College's cash position, which was just under $5.7 million
as of June 30,2017. This is related to the planned set-aside of funds for future projects, including

the capital, technology and operating needs. The College expects to begin significantly drawing

down these resources in FYl8. The Foundation's cash and cash equivalents position stood at

$478,391 at the close of FY17.

97

27
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Net Pensíon Lìøbílítv

As noted previously, GASB 68 requires entities to report the net pension liabilty for their
employees. InNew Jersey, certain employees participate in the PERS pension system, which is a

defined benefit plan. The New Jersey Division of Pensions has provided actuarial estimates, which
show that the net pension liability for current WCCC employees and retirees. These long-term
liabilities for FYl7 and FYl6 are $6,969,306 and $5,369,408, respectively. These are reflected in
the Financial Statements but are a responsibility of the New Jersey Public Employee Retirement

System (PERS) to assume.

The impact of the Pension liability on the College financial statements is shown on the official
statements along with the related deferred inflows and outflows. Pension liabilities are not
recorded on the College's accounting system and are shown for GASB 68 purposes only.

Future Developments

The final component of the MD & A is a discussion of future developments. This section is
intended to focus on prospective issues that may affect the College's financial position in future
years. There are five issues ofnote:

Strategìc Plønníng

In Decemb er 2014, the Board of Trustees adopted its latest Strategic Planning to cover the 2014-
2019 period. The areas of focus detailed in the plan are as follows:

o Outcomes Assessment and Program Review
o DevelopmentalEducation
o Workforce and Economic Development
o Human Resource Planning
o Facilities Planning
o Enrollment and Retention
o Distance Education
o ERP Replacement (Jenzabar Project)

Many of the activities have been implemented or completed. The focus of FY18 and FY19 will
be on the completion of the Building Annex project, with sufficient WCCC resources and state

bond funds already set aside for this purpose.

The College continues to undertake both outcomes assessment and program review. Recent efforts
have focused on ensuring that programs are viable in the face of declining enrollments. To date,

two lower enrolling programs have been put on hiatus (A.A.S. in Early Childhood and A.A.S. in
Graphic and Web Design, the latter to be converted to an AA program). During 2017-18, the
College will be exploring with the Wa:ren County Technical Institution and other institutions more

cost effective ways to deliver the A.A.S. in Automotive Technology and the A.A.S. in Food and

Beverage Management.



t7

Buìlding Annex

On June 30,20|6,WCCC was notified that it had received $2.0 million in state General Obligation
(GO Bond) grant funds to support the construction of a building annex to replace the modular

classroom building. This project would include alarge computer lab, an auditorium, additional

faculty offrce space and fully ADA complianlgender neutral restrooms (a significant need for the

campus). The entire project is budgeted at $2.8 million, including funds that have previously been

set aside for future construction needs by V/CCC and a county allocation of $500,000 towards this

project.

The design process is underway for this facility and groundbreaking will occur in early spring.

The project is expected to be completed by December 2018.

Technologt Upgrødes

In FY13, the College \ilas awarded $917,000 in state bond funds to support equipment and

infrastructure needs, including the replacement of student and financial information systems.

These projects have all been completed. In September 2017, the Board of Trustees approved a

new Technology plan to self-fund technology equipment and infrastructure needs over the next

five years.

Enrollment Chønges and Budget Challenges

V/CCC's enrollment tends over the past decade mirror regional and national trends. There was

an enoÍnous growth in community college enrollment right after the 2008 recession. This also

was fueled an expansion in financial aid eligibility, especially for those who recently became

unemployed. Enrollment grew significantly from FY09 through FYl1.

Enrollment began levelling off in FYl2,both in New Jersey and nationally. WCCC's enrollment

is back to the level that it was prior to the recession. This reflects not only a stronger economy,

but also a"baby bust" in New Jersey high school classes. WCCC enrollment is not anticipated to

grow significantly over the next several years due to the enactment of Highlands legislation in
2004,which has significantly limited land use and property development in Warren County.

Despite enrollment limitations, V/CCC remains financially stable. Over the past decade, the

College did not increase its overall staffing complement or undertake major service expansions as

a result of the enrollment bubble. Instead, WCCC targeted excess revenue to support one-time

priorities such as capital and renewal and replacement needs. As a result, the College has been

able to maintain a strong financial position over the past decade. As part of its strategy of coping

with additional budget constraints, WCCC has adopted a hybrid teaching/administrative job

classification ("Teaching Administrators") to support both instructional and academic/student

support needs. These l2-month positions allow the College to address functions and services

outside of the normal 3O-week facuþ teaching schedule and have enabled services such as

advising to be provided through these hybrid positions.
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V/CCC also has significantly expanded its dual enrollment program, to serve local high school

students. Dual enrollment, while not generating significant revenue for the college, does allow

WCCC to continue to reach out to the community and serve a larger population base in Vy'arren

County.

A portion of the College's income over the past several years has come from the rental of space at

thË phillipsburg Educãtion Center (PEC). A significant portion of the rental space went vacant in

March ZO1Z wittr the relocation of Phillipsburg Board of Education to another site. This action

was anticipated when the College first acquired the PEC in 2012. Much of the vacated space will
be leased òn a long-term basis by the NJ Department of Labor beginning in spring, 2018. In the

meantime, the College has previously set aside funds to cover any short-term loss ofrental income

in FY18 and FY19.

Mìnor Capitøl Proiects

During the summer of 2017,the College completed the sidewalk replacement project and a minor

roofing project. During 2017-18, the College will undertake a re-carpeting of original offices

throughóutih. 
"u-p.ts. 

In summer 20l8,the College will undertake a boiler replacement project

for the Phillipsburycampus. Also in early 2018, the College will commission a new multi-year

Renewal and Replácement plan for both the V/ashington and Phillipsburg sites, refreshing plans

that were developed in2012.

Reøccredìtøtìon

During spring 20ì8,WCCC will undergo a scheduled reaccreditation review by the Middle States

Commission on Higher Education (MSCHE). The College was last re-accredited in 2013. During

February z1l1,thJCo[ege will submit a self-study report to the Self-Study Visiting Team. The

Visiting Team will anivè on campus in late March to evaluate the College. The College will
formally be considered for reaccreditation by MSCHE in June 2018. In preparation for these

events, tommittees of the College have been working on the SelÊStudy draft report over the past

year.
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WARREN COUNTY COMMUNITY COLLEGE

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

JUNE 30.2017 AND 2016

THE ACCOMPANYING NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ARE AN INTEGRAL PART OF THIS FINANCIAL STATEMENT

68,572

6,784,632 6,707,922

16,517,821 17,485,626

16,517,82t 17,485,626

23,302,453 24,193,548

2017 2016

ASSETS

Current Assets:

Cash and cash equivalents

Investrnents

Restricted cash and cash equivalents

Receivables:

Student accounts receivable (net ofallowance for doubtful accounts

of$738,602 for 2017 and $665,929 for 2016)

Third-party receivables

Other restricted receivables

Prepaid expenses

Total Current Assets

Noncurrent Assets:

Capital Assets:

Depreciable Buildings and Building Improvements

and Furniture, Machinery and Equipment

Total Noncurrent Assets

TOTAL ASSETS

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Changes in Assumptions - Pensions

Difference Between Expected and Actual Experience - Pensions

Net Diffe¡ence Between Projected and Actual Investment Eamings on

Plan Investments - Pensions

College's Contribution Subsequent to Measurement Date - Pensions

TOTAL DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES

LIABILITIES

Current Liabilities:

Accounts payable

Scholarship payable

Accrued compensated absences payable

Uneamed revenue

Total Current Liabilities

Non-Current Liabilities

TOTAI LIABILITIES

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

Net Difference Between Projected and Actual Investrnent Eamings on

Plan Investments - Pensions

Changes in Proportions - Pensions

TOTAL DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

NET POSITION

Net invesÍnent in capital assets

Restricted

Unrestricted(Deficit)

TOTAL NET POSITION

$ 5,595,736

66r,268
77,868

t6t,6s2
210,140

9,199

68,769

$ 5,482,980

623,856

25,162

179,266

328,086

1,443,668

t29,608

265,746

2ll,5tl

576,632

128,09s

209,049

2,050,533 913,776

833,s09

17,712

132,850

144,015

I,128,086

1,015,678

27,707

123,844

123,809

1,29r,038

7,105,306 5,50s,408

8,233,392 6,796,446

390,395

86,330

417,640

390,395 503,970

t6,5t7,821
577,827

17,485,626

565,803

(244,s21)

$ 16,729,t99 S 17,806,908
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WARREN COUNTY COMMUNITY COLLEGE
STATEMENT OF REVENUES. EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION

FOR TIIE FISCAL YEARS ENDED JLNE

2017 2016

Operating Revenue:
Student Tuition and Fees

Federal Grants and Contracts

State and Local Grants and Contracts

Foundation Revenue

Other

Total Operating Revenue

Operating Expenses:

Instruction
Institutional Support
Public Service
Academic Support
Operation and Maintenance of Plant
Student Support
Capital Expenses

Scholarships and Student Aid
Foundation Expenses

Debt Service
Depreciation

Total Operating Expenses

Operating Loss

Nonoperating Revenue:

State appropriations
State Altemate Benefits Plan

County appropriations
Miscellaneous
Investrnent income

Total Nonoperating Revenue

Change in Net Position

Net Position- Beginning of Year

Net Position - End of Year

3,955,627
2,205,339

490,339

l,lg2,4lo
1,248,517

765,548
293,282
112,847

81,707
27,118

1,261,087

4,556,500

2,086,095

576,997
1,129,601
1,215,928

829,850
13,624

248,850
97,411
27,098

975,584

$ 3,501,457
1,182,355

654,146
127,774

390,942

4,157,926
1,303,280

670,017

126,750

545,922

s

5,856,674 6,803,795

11,633,821 11,757,538

777 t4 (4,953,743)

2,248,599
213,641

2,156,060
61,885
19,253

2,273,078
212,291

2,009,127

51,587
8,288

4,699,438

(1,077,709)

17,806,908

4,554,377

(399,372)

18,206,280

$ 16,729,199

TFIE ACCOMPANYING NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ARE AN INTEGRAL PART OF THIS FINANCIAL STATEMENT

$ 17,806,908
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WARREN COT]NTY COMML]NITY COLLEGE

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE FISCAL YEARS ENDED JUNE 30. 2017 AND 2016

TIIE ACCOMPANYING NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ARE ANINTEGRAL PART OF THIS FINANCIAL STATEMENT

S 5,673,604 $ 5,508,142

s (5,777,147) s (4,953,743)

1,261,087 975,584

(l 8,159) 8,499

165,462

5,508,142

237,627

5,270,515

88,796

51,523

4,500

(65,047)
(762,994)

25 1,810

(7,846)
(32,069)
(29,047)

574,360

35,710

s (4,203,282)

2017 20r6

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Cash received from students for tuition and fees

Grants and contracts received

Payments to suppliers

Payment for employee salaries and benefits

Other receipts

Net Cash Used for Operating Activities

CASH FLOV/S FROM NONCAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Cash received from state appropriations

Cash received from state appropriations - Alternate Benefits Plan

Cash received from county appropriations

Cash received from other non-operating activities

Net Cash Provided by Noncapiøl Financing Activities

CASH FLOV/S FROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Purchase of capital assets

Net Cash Used for Capital and Related Financing Activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Investment income

Purchases of investments

Proceeds from sales of investments

Assets converted to cash

Interest and dividends - reinvested

Unrealized gains/losses

Net Cash Provided by(Used for) Investing Activities

Net Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and Cash Equivalents - Beginning of Year

Cash and Cash Equivalents - End of Year

Reconciliation of operating loss to net cash

used for operating activities:

Operating Loss

Adjustment to reconcile operating loss to net cash used for operating

activities:
Depreciation
Changes in assets and liabilities:

(Increase)/Decrease in Student accounts receivable

(Increase/Decrease in Third-party receivables

(Increase/Decrease in Other restricted receivables

(Increase)/Decrease in prepaid expenses

(Increase)/Decrease in Deferred Outflows of Resources

Increase/(Decrease) in Accounts payable

Increase(Decrease) in Scholarships payable

Increase(Decrease) in Accrued compensated absences payable

Increase/(Decrease) in Unearned revenue

Increase/(Decrease) in Non current liabilities

Increase/(Decrease) in Deferred Inflows of Resources

Net Cash Used for Operating Activities

$ 4,888,920

287,694
(2,677,434)
(7,093,404)

390,942

$ 5,487,051

651,564

(3,315,591)
(7,237,409)

545,922

4,203,282) (3,868,463)

2,249,599
213,641

2,156,060
61,885

2,273,078
212,291

2,009,127

51,587

4,680,185 4,546,083

(448,492)

(448,492)

19,253

(145,482)
128,289

(15,007)
(5,212)

8,288

(103,771)
109,614

(1,000)
(t4,337)

9,705

17,614

117,946

(9,199)
(te7)

(1,136,757)
(182,169)

(9,995)

9,006

20,206
1,599,898

-113,575

$ (3,868 ,463)
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WARREN COI.INTY COMMUMTY COLLEGE
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2OI7

Note 1: Oreanization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Warren County Community College (the "College") is an institution of higher education and a

governmental unit and instrumentality of the State of New Jersey as provided by the County

College Act, N.J.S.A. 184:644.

Basis of Accounting

The Wanen County Community College's financial statements are based on all applicable

Governmental Accounting standards Board (GASB) pronouncements.

The College makes a distinction between operating and non-operating revenues and expenses. The

College's-policy for defining operating activities as reported on the Statement of Revenues,

Expeñses *a itt*g.s in Nei pósition are those that generally result from exchange transactions

.urh u, payments ieceived for providing services and payments made for services or goods

received. Ñearly all of the College's expenses are from exchange transactions. Certain significant

revenue streams relied upon for óperatiôns are recorded as non-operating revenues, as defined by

GASB Statement No. 3a, including state and county appropriations as well as investment income.

Restricted resources are spent and-tracked at the discretion of the College within the guidelines of
donor restrictions, if anY.

Reporting Entity

Governmental Accounting Standards Board ("GASB") Codification Section 2100, "Defining the

Financial Reporting Entity" establishes standards to determine whether a governmental component

unit should be included in the financial reporting entity. Component units are legally separate

organizations for which the elected officials of the primary government are flrnancially

accountable. In addition, component units can be other organizations for which the nature and

significance of their relationship with a primary government.are such that exclusion would cause

thã reporting entity's financial statements to be misleading. The primary government_is financially

accotùtable-if it aþpoints a voting majority of the organization's governing body and (1) it is able

to impose its will'ån that organlzation or (2) there is a potential for the organization to provide

specific financial benefits to, or impose specific financial burdens ono the primary government' A

lågally separate, tax-exempt organization should be reported as a component unit of a reporting

rniity if uil of tÍtr following criteria are met: (1) The economic resources received or held by the

separate organization are 
-entirely or almost entirely for the direct benefrt of the primary

goïernment] its component units, or its constituents. (2) The primary govemment, or its

õomponent units, is 
"ntitt.¿ 

to, or has the ability to otherwise access, a majority of the economic

resources received or held by the separate organization. (3). The economiç resources received or

held by an individual organiiation thãt the specific primary government, or its component units, is

entitled to, or has the áUitity to otherwise access, are significant to that primary government.

Furthermore, the College is not includable in any other reporting entity on the basis of such

criteria. The Warren County Community College is a component unit of the County of Warren.
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Note 1

WARREN COUNTY COMMUNITY COLLEGE
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2017

(Continued)

Organization and Summar.v of Signifìcant Accounting Policies (Cont'd)

The Warren County College Foundation (the Foundation) is a legally separate, tax-exempt entþ
that was established exclusively to carry out charitable, educational functions that benefit the

College, its students, faculty and staff. The College appoints a voting majority of the Foundation's

board. All financial resources of the Foundation are held for the direct benefit of the College or its

constituents and the College has the ability to access these significant resourçes. As a result, the

Foundation is considered a component unit of the College and is blended into the financial

statements accordingly.

Measurement Focus

The financial statements of the College have been prepared using the total economic resources

measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting, and conform to generally accepted

accounting principles in the United States of America as applicable to colleges and universities'

For financial reporting purposes, the College utilizes the business-type activities model.

Under the terms of grant and other agreements, the College may fund certain programs by a
combination of specifîc cost-reimbursement grants, categorical block grants, other restricted funds

and general revenue. Therefore, when program expenses are incurred, both restricted and

urrtestricted net position may be available to finance the program. It is the College's policy to first
apply cost-reimbursement grants and other restricted resources to such programs, followed by

general revenue.

Fund Accounting

In order to ensure observance of limitations and restrictions placed on the use of the resources

available to the College, accounts are maintained in accordance with the principles of "fund

accounting". This is the procedure by which resources for various purposes are classified for
accounting and internal reporting purposes into funds that are in accordance with activities or

objectiveJ specified. Separate accounts are maintained for each fund; however, in the

acóompanying financial statements, funds have been combined in order to comply with th9

requiráments of eliminating internal revenue and expense charges and to meet the financial

reporting requirements under accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America as promulgated by GASB.

Within each fund group, fund balances restricted by outside sources are so indicated and are

distinguished from Unrestricted Funds allocated to specific purposes by action of the governing

boardl Restricted Funds may only be utilized in accordance with the purposes established by the

donor or grantor of such funds, and are in contrast with Unrestricted Funds over which the

governing board retains full control to use in achieving any of its institutional purposes.

The College uses encumbrance accounting for internal accounting and reporting. Under

çncumbrance accounting, purchase orders, contract and other commitments for the expenditure of
resources are recorded to reserve a portion ofthe applicable appropriation,

The College accounts for its financial transactions through the following separate funds:

Operating Fund - to account for funds which are expendable for any purpose in performing the

prìmary objectives of the college, including tuition and student fees funds.
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WARREN COI.INTY COMMUMTY COLLEGE
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FISCAL YEAR ENDED JIINE 30" 2017

(Continued)

Note 1: Summar.v of Significant Accounting Policies (Cont'd)

Restricted Fund - to account for those funds expendable for operating purposes, but restricted by

donors and other outside agencies, as to the specific purposes for which they may be expended'

Accounts included in the Restricted Funds are:

College Funds - to account for state and local grant revenue and expenses as well as student club

activities.

Foundation Funds - to account for revenue and expenses of funds for the Warren County

Community College Foundation.

Plant Fund - to account for funds expended for properly and equipment'

Net Position:

Net position represents the difference between assets, deferred inflows and outflows, and

liabilities. Net investment in capital assets consists of capital assetso net of accumulated

depreciation, reduced by the outitanding balance of any borrowing used for the acquisition,

construction, or i-prouøoent of those assètr. Net position is reported as restricted when there are

limitations i*poseå on their use either through the enabling legislation adopted by the College or

through external restrictions imposed by cieditors, grantors, or laws or regulations of other

governments. The Collegr" póliry is io first ,apply restricted resources when an expense is

lncuned for purposes for which both restricted and uffestricted net position is available.

Comnensated Absences:

The College accounts for compensated absences (e.g., unused vacationo sick leave) as directed by

GASB Stitement No. 16, Acòounting for Compeniated Absences. A liability for compensated

absences athibutable to services aheãáy rendered and not contingent on a specific 
"YTt 

that is

outside the control of the employer and employee is accrued as employees earn the rights to the

benefits.

College employees are granted varying amounts of vacation and sick leave in accordance with the

College,s pèrsonnel policy or appropriate labor contract. Employees can acsrue up to a one-year

allocation of vacation leave. Ûi,"r termination, employees are paid for accrued vacation' The

College,s policy permits employees to accumulate unused sick leave and carry forward the full

amount to'subsáquent years.'Uion retirement, faculty who have wolk9d_ at the College for 10 or

more years shail te puia fy the College for up to $8,000 in unused sick leave in accordance with

their contract, The'College has està-blished a long-term liability equivalent to the number of

faculty with 10 or more years of service'

In the Statement of Net Position, the liabilities whose average maturities are greater than one year

should be reported in two components - the amount due within one year and the amount due after

one year.
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(Continued)

Summar.v of Significant Accounting Policies (Cont'd)

lnventory

The College had no inventory at June 30,2017 ot 2016.

Income Taxes

The College, as an instrumentality of the State of New Jersey and therefore a governmental entþ,
has determined itself to be a tax-exempt organization and not subject to either federal or state

income taxes. The Warren County Community College Foundation, as a 501(c)(3) organization,

also is not subject to taxes.

Allowance for Uncollectible Accounts:

The College had an allowance for uncollectible accounts of $738,602 and 5665,929 at June 30,

2017 and 2016, .rsprctively. The allowance for uncollectible accounts consists of all items that

are currently 365 days or more overdue as well as 80% of the receivables over 120 days'

Deferred Outflows and Deferred Inflows of Resources:

The Statement of Net Position reports separate sections for deferred outflows of resources and

defened inflows of resources. Defened outflow of resources, reported after Total Assets,

represents a reduction of net position that applies to a future period(s) and will be recognized as an

outflow of resources (expenie) at that time. Deferred inflows of resources, reported after Total

Liabilities, represents an-acquisition of net position that applies to a future period(s) and will be

recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) at that time.

Transactions are classified as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources

only when specifically prescribed by GASB standards. The College is required to report the

following as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources.

Defined Benefit Pension Plans - The difference between expected (actuarial) and actual

experience, changes in actuarial assumptions, net difference between projected (actuarial) and

actval.*ningr on pension plan investmãnts, changes in the College's proportion ofexpenses and

liabilities to tle pension ur ã whole, differences between the College's pension contribution and its

proportionat" .hur" of contributions, and the College's pension contributions subsequent to the

pension valuation measurement date.

Pensions:

For purposes of measuring the net pension liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred

inflows of resources relateà to pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net

pension of the Public Employees Retirement System ("PERS") and additions to/deductions from

ÞERS', fiduciary net posiiion have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by the

plans. For this 
-pu.póp, 

benefit payments (including refunds of employee contributions) are

recognized when-duå and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are reported at

fair value.



26

WARREN COLTNTY COMMUMTY COLLEGE
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2017

(Continued)

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Cont'd)Note I

Note 2

Management Estimates:

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to make

estimates arrd assumpiions that affect the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the

reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Cash" Cash Equivalents. and Investments

Cash and cash equivalents include petty cash, change funds, amounts in deposits, and short-term

investments with maturities of thee months or less'

The College generally records investments at fair value and records the unrealized gains and losses

as part of investmení in"orn.. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an investment

in an orderly transaction between market participants at 
.the. 

measurement date. The College

categorizes ít, fui, value measurements wifnin thè fair value hierarchy establishgd by generally

""""lpt"d 
accounting prin"ipt.s. The hierarchy is based 9n thg valuation inputs used to measure the

fair value of the assei. Level 1 inputs *. quot"d prices in active markets for identical assets; Level

2 inputs are significant other observable inputs; Lèvel 3 inputs are significant unobservable inputs'

Investments are presented in the financial statements in the aggregate at fair value^ based on quoted

market prices. th. Collrg.'s investments for the years ended June 30, 2017 anó 2016 consisted of

investments with the New Jersey Cash Management Fund'

GASB requires disclosure of the level of custodial credit risk assumed by the College in its cash,

cash equivalents and investments, if those items are uninsured or unregistered' Deposits are

,*por.å to custodial credit risk ifthey are not covered by depository insurance andjhe deposits are

uncollateralized, collat eralized with securities held by the pledging financial institution or

collateralized with securities held by the pledging financial institution's trust department or agent

but not in the depositor-governm"ni', nu-". õurto¿iut credit risk is the risk that in the event of a

bank failure, the 
-College's 

deposits may not be returned'

Interest Rate Risk - In accordance with its formal cash management plan, the College ensures that

any deposit or investment matures within the time period thãt approximates the prospective need

for the funds, deposited or invested, so that there is not a risk to the market value of such deposits

or investments.

Credit Risk - The College limits its investments to those authorized in its formal cash management

plan which are those p"ãoi6"O under state statute as detailed on the following pages'

Custodial Credit Risk - The College does not have a policy with respect to custodial credit risk.

However, the Co¡ete ensures thai College funds are- only deposited in financial institutions in

which NJ school districts are permitted to invest their funds.
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Note 2: Cash. Cash Equivalents. and Investments (Cont'd)

New Jersey statutes permit the deposit of public funds in institutions located in New Jersey,

which are ínsured by the Federal Dèposit hJurance Corporation (FDIC) or by any other agencies

of the United Statesihat insure deposìts or the State of New Jersey Cash Management Fund.

New Jersey statutes require public depositories to maintain collateral for deposits of public funds

that exceed insurance limits as follows:

The market value of the collateral must equal 5% of the average daily balance of public

funds; and

If the public funds deposited exceed 75% of the capital funds of the depository, the

depositåry must providê collateral having a market value equal to 100% of the amount

exceeding 75%.

All collateral must be deposited with the Federal Reserve Bank, the Federal Home Loan Bank

Board or a banking institution that is a member of the Federal Reserve System and has capital

funds of not less than $25,000,000.

Cash and cash equivalents of the College as of June 30,2017 consisted of the following:

College Foundation Total

s 1,579,446 s 464,371 $ 2,043,817Casl¡ Checking and Cash Equivalents

New Jersey Cash Management Fund

Casl¡ Checking and Cash Equivalents

New Jersey Cash Management Fund

Cash and cash equivalents of the College as of June 30,

Collese

J 787 787

$ 5209,233æ $ 4Ø.371 s 5,673,604

2016 consisted of the following:

Foundation Total

$ 1,611,051 $ 486,557 s 2,097,608

3,4 10.534 3,4 10.534

$ 5,021 .s85 $ 486,557 $s r42

The carrying amount of the College's cash and cash equivalents at cost at June 30, 2017 was

55,673,604ão¿ tft" bank balanc" úu. 55,778,251. The $3,629,787 with the New Jersey Cash

Management Fund was uninsured and unregistered. The carrying amount ofthe College's cash and

cash fruivalents at cost at June 30, 2016 was $5,508,142 and the bank balance was $5'926,493'

ttre $:,¿t0,534 with the New Jersey Cash Management Fund was uninsured and unregistered'

Investments

New Jersey statutes permit the College to purchase the following types of securities:

1. Bonds or other obligations of the United States of America or obligations guaranteed by

the United States of America;
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Note 2: Cash. Cash Equivalents. and Investments (Cont'd)

Investments (Cont'd)

2. Government money market mutual funds;

3. Any obligation that a federal agency or a federal instrumentality has issued in

accordancè with an act of Congress, which security has a maturity date not greater than

397 days from the date ofpurchase, provided that such obligation bears a fixed rate of
interest not dependent on any index or other external factor;

4. Bonds or other obligations, having a maturþ date not more than 397 days from the date

of purchase, approved by the Division of Local Government Services in the Department

of Community Affairs for investment by local units;

5. Local government investment pools;

6. Deposits with the State of New Jersey Cash Management Fund established pursuant to

section 1 of P'L. 197 7, c'281 (C.52:1 84-90'4); or

7. Agreements for the repurchase of ftrlly collateralized securities if:

a. the underlying securities are permitted investments pursuant to paragraphs I and

3 above;

b. the custody of collateral is transferred to a third party;

c. the maturity of the agreement is not more than 30 days;

d. the underlying securities are purchased through a public depository as defined in

section 1 of P.L. 1970,c.236 (C.17:9-41);and

e. a master repurchase agreement providing for the custody and security of
collateral is executed.

As of June 30, the actual changes in the fair market value of the Foundation's investments consisted of the

following:
2017 2016

Balance Juþ I

Investment activity:

Realized gain(loss) on investments

Dividend and Interest Income

Assets Converted to Cash

Sale of Investrnents

Purchase of Investments

$ 623,856 $ 624,068

37.4r2 QLz\

S 5,212

15,007

(r28,289)

t45.482

$ (9,706)

14,337

1,000

(109,614)

t03,771

Balance June 30 $ 661268 $ 623.8s6
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(Continued)

Note 2: Cash. Cash Equivalents. and lnvestments (Cont'd)

lnvestments (Cont'd)

June 30,2017

Note 3:

Age in

Days

rzt-365
365 and over

June 30,2016

Cost Value Fair Value Cost Value Fair Value

Mutual Funds $ 604.887 g 661,268 $ 604.887 $ 623,856

$ 604,887 s 661,268 $ 604.887 $ 623,856

Student Accounts Receivable

Unpaid student accounts are charged to student accounts receivable, and students are notiflred of
payments due to the College. No provision for delinquent penaþ interest is provided. However,

any grade or transcript release or future registration will be denied to any student with an unpaid

obligation due to the College. The College does pursue collection through an agency, including

litigation, if payment is not received during the next semester. During the fiscal year ended June

30,2017, the College used the services of two collection agents. Fees charged by these agents

ranged from25o/o to 35Yo of the amount collected.

As of June 30, 2017 and 2016, accounts receivable from students amounted to S900,254 and

$845,195, respectively, excluding the allowance for doubtful accounts in the amount of $738,602

for the frscal year ending 2017 and 5665,929 in 2016. The allowance for doubtful accounts

recorded for the fiscal year ended 2017 amotnted to 8738,602 as a result of the following
provision rates applied to the receivable balance per receivable aging category.

Provision

Rate

80%

lÙU/o

The College's policy is to write off any student accounts that have been outstanding for more than

three years.

Note 4: Third-Partv Receivables

As of June 30,2017 and2016,the College had third parlry-receivables in the amounts of $210,140

and $328,086, respectively. This receivable consists mainly of $74,685 in state grant and pension

reimbursements and $21,470 in customized training revenues in fiscal year 2017, As of June 30,

the College had financial awards receivable in the amount of $30,023.

Note 5: Prepaid Expenses

Prepaid expenses at June 30,2017 total $68,769, and include a number of small pre-payments for

warranteeso copier fees, and computer licenses'
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(Continued)

Capital Assets

Capital assets include property, plant equipment, and infrastructure assets, such as roads and

sidewalks. Capital usr.i, ar. defrned by the College as assets with an initial unit cost of $1,500 or

more. Such assets are recorded at historical cost or estimated historical cost if purchased or

constructed. The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the assets

or materially extend assets' lives are not capitalized. Major outlays for capital assets and

improvements are capitalized as projects are constructed. The County of Warren is responsible for

the issuance of bondi and notes ior the College's capital expenditures which are financed by bond

ordinances. The County is also responsible for the payment of interest on issued bonded debt and

the retirement of such obligations. Accordingly, this debt is reported in the financial statements of
the County of Warren. Dõnated fixed assets are recorded based on estimated fair market value at

the time received. Capital assets were reviewed for impairment'

Capital assets are recorded at cost and consisted of the following, as of June 30,2017 and2016:

Beginning

Balance Additions Deletions

Ending

Balance

Capital Assets Being Depreciated:

Building

Building Improvements

Furnih¡re and Fixtures

Computer and Equþment

Less Accumulated Depreciation for:

Building

Building Improvements

Furniture and Fixtures

Computer and EquiPment

CapitalAssets,

Net of Accumulated DePreciation

s21,091,674

2,050,852

1,431,900

2,037,133

$ 199,146

28,745

65,390

s (277,073)

(l1,531)

s 21,091,674

1,972,925

1,449,114

65.940) 2p36"583(

26ßl1.559 293281 (354,5M)

(6226,052)

(799,392)

(7soó3e)

(421,160)

(402203)

(182962)

(254,161\

(6,&7,812)

277,073 (924,522)

llJ3l (922,070)

( 6s940

354.54

(1,538,071)

(9,125.933) (1261 (t0932A7s\.086)

$17 _$ (e67,s05) Å_o-_ i--1g,82]_

The college did not have active construction projects as of June 30,2017.

Depreciation is recognized on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful life of the asset as

follows:

Classification
Buildings
Building Improvements
Fumiture and Fixtures
Computers and EquiPment

Life
50 years
15 years
7 years
4 years
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(Continued)

2017

June 30,

Note 7: A. Accrued Expenses

As of June 30, accrued expenses consisted of the following:

Compensated Absences Payable - Current Portion

Compensated Absences - Long Term Portion

Net Pension Liabilily

Note 8

2016

$ 132,850

136,000

s 123,844

136,000

5,369,408
g 5,629252s 7238,156

The only post-retirement benefit offered through the College is a sick leave payout of up to $8,000

for faculty members meeting criteria contained within the faculty contract, including one yearos

advance notice of retirement.

B. Net Pension Liability

The Public Employee's Retirement System (PERS) net pension liability of the governmental fund

types is recordLd in the current and long-term liabilities and will be liquidated by the General

Fund. The current portion of the net pension liability at June 30,2017 is $-0- and the long term

portion is $6,969,306. See Note I for further information on the PERS.

Pension Plans

Substantially all of the College's employees participate in one contributory, defined benefit public

employee rótirement system: the Public Employee's Retirement System (PERS) of New Jersey'

A. Public Employees' Retireme.nt System (PERS)

Plan Description

The State of New Jersey, Public Employees' Retirement System (PERS) is a cost-sharing multiple-

employer defined Uenént pension plan administered by the State of New Jersey, Division of
pensions and Benefits (thebivision). For additional information about the PERS, please refer to

the Division's Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) which can be found at

www,state.nj.usltreasury/pensionsiannrprts'shtml.

Benefits Provided

The vesting and benefit provisions are set by N.J.S.A. 43:154. PERS provides retirement, death

and disabiìíty benefits. All benefits vest after ten years of service, except for medical benefits'

which vest aiter 25 years of service or under the disability provisions of PERS'
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Pension Plans (Cont'd)

A. Public Employees'Retirement System (PERS) (Cont'd)

Benefits Provided (Cont'd)
The following represents the membership tiers for PERS:

Deftrition

I Members who were enrolled prior to July 1,2007

2 Members who were elþible to enroll on or after July l, 2007 and prior to November 2,2008

3 Members who were eþfule to emoll on or after November 2,2008 and prior to May 22,2010

, 4 Members who were eligible to enroll on or after May 22,2010 and prior to June 28. 2011

5 Members who were eþible to enroll on or after June 28, 20l l

Service retirement benefits of 1/55ú of final average salary for each year of service credit is

available to Tiers I and} members upon reaching age 60 and to Tier 3 members upon reaching

age 62. Service retirement benefits of t¡OOú offinal average salary for each year ofservice credit

is=available to Tier 4 members upon reaching age 62 andto Tier 5 members upon reaching age 65.

Early retirement benefits ur. auuìluble to Tiers I and2 members before reaching age 60, to Tiers 3

and 4 with 25 or more years of service credit and Tier 5 with 30 or more years of service credit

before age 65. Benefits are reduced by a fraction of a percent for each month that a members

retires prior to the age at which a member can receive full early retirement benefits in accordance

with their respectivelier. Tier 1 members can receive an unreduced benefit from age 55 to age 60

if they have at least 25 years of service. Deferred retirement is available to members who have at

least l0 years of service credit and have not reached the service retirement age for the respective

tier.

Tier

Contributions

The contribution policy for pERS is set by N.J.S.A. 43:154 and requires contributions by active

members and contribuiing members. The local employers' contribution amounts a¡e based on an

actuarially determined ratã which includes the normal cost and unfunded accrued liability' Chapter

19, p.L. 20Oe provided an option for local employers of PERS to contribute 50Yo of the normal and

accrued liabilþ conhibution amounts cenifièd for payments due in State fîscal year 2009. Such

employers wilibe credited with ttre full payment and any such amounts will not be included in

their unfunded liability. The actuaries will determine the unfunded liability of those retirement

systems, by employer, for the reduced normal and accrued liability contributions provided under

tfris taw. This unfunded liability will be paid by the employer in level annual payments over a

period of 15 years beginning with the payments due in the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012 and will

üe adjusted úy the raie of õtu* on the actuarial value of assets. College contributions to PERS

amounted to $209,428 for fiscal yeat 2017.

The employee contribution rate was 7.20o/o effective July l, 2016. Subsequent increases after

Octobei l, 20ll are being phased in over 7 years effective on each July l't to bring the total

pension contribution rate to 7 '5%o of base salary as of July 1, 20 I 8'
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FISCAL YEAR ENDED JLINE 30. 2017

(Continued)

Amortization

Period

in Years

Pension Liabilities. Pension Expense. and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows

of Resources Related to Pensions

At June 30,2017,the College reported a liability of $6,969,306 for its proportionate share of the

net pension liability. The net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2016, and the total

p.niion liability used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation

às of July 1,2015 which was rolled forward to June 30,2016. The College's proportion of the net

pension iiaUitity was based on a projection of the College's long-term sha¡e of contributions to the

pension plan ielative to the projected contributions of all participating members, actuarially

àetermined. At June 30, 2016, the College's proportion was .0235o/o, which was an increase of
.001% from its proportion measured as of June 30,2015.

For the frscal year ended June 30, 2017, the College recognized pension expense of $209,428' At
June 30, 201i, the College reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of
resources related to pensions from the following sources:

Year

Deferred
Outflows of
Resources

Deferred
Inflows of
Resources

Changes in Assumptions

Difference Between Expected

and Actual Experience

Changes in Proportion

Net Difference Between Projected

and Actual Investment Earnings

on Pension Plan Investments

Contribution Subsequent

to the Measurement Date

2014

2015

2016

2015

2016

2014

2015

2016

2014

2015

2016

2016

6.44

5.72

5.57

5.72

5.57

6.44

5.72

s.57

6.44

5.72

5.57

1.00

$ 87,606

357,976

998,086

99,319

30,289

(131,278)

83,991

313,033

211"511

I15,405

2ll,76l
63,229

$

$ 2,050,533 $ 390.395

Amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources (excluding

employer specific amounts including changes in proportion and the contribution subsequent to

-"ãr*tn"nt date) related to pensions will be recognized in pension expense as follows:
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Note 8: Pension Plans (Cont'd)

A. Public Employees' Retirement System (PERS) (Cont'd)

Pension Liabilities. Pension Expense. and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred lnflows

of Resources Related to Pensions (Cont'd)

Fiscal Year

Endine June 30. Total

2017

201 I
2019

2020

2021

Inflation Rate
Salary Increases:

2012-2021
Thereafter

Investment Rate of Return

3.08%

1.65 - 4.15% based on age

2.65 - 5.15% based on age

7.65%

$ 414,039

414,038

479,678

403,000

t28.267

$ 1,839 "022

Actuarial Assumptions

The total pension liability for the June 30, 2016 measurement date was determined by an actuarial

valuationäs of July 1,2015 which was rolled forward to June 30,20L6. This actuarial valuation

used the following actuarial assumptions:

pre-retirement mortality rates were based on the RP-2000 Employee Pre-retirement Mortality

Table for male and femäle active participants. For local employees, mortality tables are set back?

years for males and 7 years for females. In addition, the tables provide for future improvements in

mortality from the base year of 2013 using a generational approach based on the plan actuary's

modifieã MP-2014 projettion scale. Post-retirement mortality rates were based on the RP-2000

Combined Healthy tvtaie and Female Mortality Tables (set back I year for males and females) for

service retirements and beneficiaries of former members and a one-year static projection based on

mortality improvement Scale AA. In addition, the tables for service retirements and beneficiaries

of formår mémbers provide for future improvements in mortality from the base year of 20 13 using

a generational approach based on thé plan actuary's modified MP-2014 projection scale.

oiJaUitity retiremènt rates used to value disabled retirees were based on the RP-2000 Disabled

Mortality Table (set back 3 years for males and set forward one year for females).

The actuarial assumptions used in the July 1, 2015 valuation were based on the results of an

actuarial experience study for the period July 1, 2011 to June 30, 2014' It is likely that future

experience will not .*urily conform to these assumptions. To the extent that actual experience

deviates from these assumptions, the emerging liabilities may be higher or lower than anticipated.

The more the experience deviates, the larger the impact on future financial statements'
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Note 8: Pension Plans (Cont'd)

A. Public Employees'Retirement System (PERS) (Cont'd)

Long Term Expected Rate of Return

In accordance with State statute, the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments
(7 .65% at June 30, 2016) is determined by the State Treasurer, after consultation with the Directors
of the Division of Investments and Division of Pensions and Benefits, the Board of Trustees and

the actuaries. The long-term expected rate of return was determined using a building block method

in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected-returts, net of
pension plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. These

ranges are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected

future real rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected
inflation. Best estimates of a¡ithmetic real rates of retum for each major asset class included in
PERS' target asset allocation as of June 30,2016 are summarized in the following table:

Asset Class

Target

Allocation

Long-Term

Expected Real

Rate of
Return

Cash

U.S. Treasuries

Investment Grade Credit

Mortgages

High Yield Bonds

Inflation-Indexed Bonds

Broad U.S. Equities

Developed Foreþ Equities

Emerging Market Equities

Private Equrty

Hedge Funds/Absolute Return

Real Estate (Property)

Commodities

Global Debt ex. U.S.

REIT

5.00%

1.50%

8.00%

2.00%

2.00%

150%
26.00%

t3.25%
650%
9.00%

12.50%

2.00%
0.50%

5.00%

5.25%

0.87%

t.74%

t.79%
t.67%
4.56%

3.44%

8.53%

6.83%

9.9s%

t2.40%
4.68%

6.91%

5.45%

-0.25%

5.63%
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Note 8: Pension Plans (Cont'd)

A. Public Employees' Retirement System (PERS) (Cont'd)

Discount Rate

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 3.98% as of June 30, 2016. This

single blended discount rate was based on the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan

investments of 7 .65% and a municipal bond rate of 2.85% as of June 30, 2016 based on the Bond

Buyer Go 20 Bond Municipal Bond Index which includes tax-exempt general obligation municipal

bonds with an average rating of AA/Aa or higher. The projection of cash flows used to determine

the discount rate assumed that contributions from plan members will be made at the current

member contribution rates and that contributions from employers will be made based upon the

contribution rate in the most recent fiscal year. The local employers contributed 100% of their

actuarially determined contributions. Based on those assumptions, the plan's fiduciary net position

was projected to be available to make projected future benefit payments of current plan members

through 2034. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on plan investments was applied to

projected benefit payments through 2034, and the municipal bond rate was applied to projected

benefrt payments after that date in determining the total pension liability.

Sensitivitv of the College's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the

Discount Rate

The following presents the College's proportionate share of the collective net pension liability as

of June lO,1Orc calculated using the discount rate as disclosed below, as well as what the

College's proportionate share of the net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a

discount rate that is l-percentage-point lower or l-percentage point higher than the current rate:

June 30.2016
t%

Decrease
(2.e8%)

Current
Discount Rate

t%
Increase

Note 9:

Note 10:

(3 .98%\

College's proportionate share

of the Net Pension Liability s 8,540,071 $ 6,969,306 g 5,672,503

Pension plan Fiduciary Net Position

Detailed information about the pension plan's fiduciary net position is available in the separately

issued PERS financial statements.

Unearned Revenue

Unearned revenue consists ofthe unearned portion oftuition and fees for courses offered during

the summer and fall, as well as advanced funding for summer courses. All tuition received for

courses that were not more than 50% complete as of June 30 are recognized as tuition revenue in

the subsequent fiscal year. As of June 30,2017 and2016, unearned revenue is a total of $144,015

and $ I 23,809, respectively.

Economic Dependency

The College receives a substantial amount of its support from federal, state and county

gorr"¡¡..nis. A significant reduction in the level of support, if this were to occur, may have an

effect on the College's programs and activities.
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Note 11:

Note 12:

WARREN COI.]NTY COMMUNITY COLLEGE
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FISCAL YEAR ENDED JLINE 30. 2017

(Continued)

Post-Employment Benefits

Chapter 384 of Public Laws 1987 and Chapter 6 of Public Laws 1990 required PERS, to fund post-

retirèment medical benefits for those State employees who retire after accumulating 25 years of
credited service or on a disability retirement. P.L.2007, c.103 amended the law to eliminate the

funding of post-retirement medical benefits through the PERS. It created a separate fund outside

of the p"nrìon plan for the funding and payment of post-retirement medical benefits for retired

State employees and retired educational employees. As of June 30,2016, there were ll0,5l2
retirees rãceiving post-retirement medical benefits, and the State contributed $1.37 billion on their

behalf. The cosiof these benefits is funded through contributions by the State in accordance with

Chapter 62,P.L.1994. Funding of post-retirement medical premiums changed from a pre-funding

basis to a pay-as-you-go basis beginning in fiscal year 1994.

The State is also responsible for the cost athibutable to Chapter 126,P,L. 1992, which provides

health benefits to mer¡bers of PERS and the Alternate Benefit Program who retired from a Board

of Education or County College with 25 years of service. The State paid $231.2 million toward

Chapter 126 benefits for 20,045 eligible retired members in Fiscal Year 2016.

Risk Management

The College maintains commercial insurance coverage for property, liabilþ, student accident and

surety bon¿s. The College is a member of a joint insurance Pool for workers' compensation.

Healih benefits are providid to employees through the State of New Jersey Health Benefits Plan.

The College is a member of the New Jersey Community College Insurance Pool Worker's

Compensat-ion Fund (the "Pool"). The Pool provides the College with workers' compensation

insurance. The Pool is a risk-sharing public entity risk pool that is both an insured and self-

administered group of school Colleges established for the purpose of providing low-cost insurance

coverage for its members in order to keep local property taxes at a minimum. Each member

appoinãs an official to represent their respective College for the purpose of creating a governing

body from which offtcers for the Pool are elected'

As a member of the Pool, the College could be subject to supplemental assessments in the event of
deficiencies. If the assets of the Põol were to be exhausted, members would become responsible

for their respective shares of the Pool's liabilities.

The Pool can declare and distribute dividends to members upon approval of the State of New

Jersey Department of Banking and Insurance. These distributions are divided amongst the

-"-L"r, in the same ratio ur th"ir individual assessment relates to the total assessment of the

membership body. In accordance with Statement No. 10 of the Governmental Accounting

Standards boatd, these distributions are used to reduce the amount recorded for membership

expense in the year in which the distribution was declared'
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(Continued)

Note 12: Risk Management (Cont'd)

The financial statements for the Fund for 2017 werc not available at the time of audit. Selected

summarized financial information for the Pool at June 30, 2016 and 2015 is as follows:

New Jersey Communþ College

Insurance Pool Worker's Compensation Fund

2016 2015

Total Assets

Net P os ition/(Defic it)

Operating Revenue

Total Expenses and Adþstments

Nonoperating Revenue

Change in Net Position

Member Dividends

$ 9.198.6t7 $ 8,425,039

$ 841"831 $ /679.429\

$ 2,559,887 g 2,82r,231
:#

1.407.426 s lJl7,49ls

$ 175"125

s t.52t.260 $ 1.278.865

$ -0- $ -0-

Financial statements for the Pool are available at the Pool's Executive Director's Office:

New Jersey Community College Insurance Pool

PO Box B
Trenton, NJ 08690

Contingent Liabilities

The College is periodically involved in claims and lawsuits incidental to its operations' In the

opinion oíthr aåministratiän and legal counsel, the ultimate resolution of these matters would not

häve a material adverse effect on the financial position or operations of the College'

The College participates in federal and state assisted grant programs. These programs are subject

to prograrã cämpliance audits by the grantors or their representatives. The College is potentially

liaúle for expenses which may be disallowed pursuant to the terms of these grant programs'

Management of the College ii not aware of any material items of noncompliance which would

result in the disallowance of grant program expenses'

Accounts Payable

The College's accounts payable as of June 30 consists of:

2017 2016

Accounts Payable, including accruals

Contribution Subsequent to Measurement Date

Payroll Liabilities

$ 237,807

2ll,5ll
375.944

$ 705,765

302"239

368.799 $

Note 13

Note 14

$ 82s.262 $ 1,008,004
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(Continued)

Note 14: Accounts Payable (Cont'd)

The Foundation's accounts payable as ofJune 30 consists of:
2017 20r6

Accounts Payable - Vendors S 8,247 $ 7.674

g 8,247 $ 7,674

Note 15: Operating Leases

The College did not have any operating leases as ofJune 30,2017, orJune 30,2016'

Note 16: Restricted Net Position

There was restricted net position of the College of $577,827 and $565,803 as of June 30,2017 and

June 30,2016, respectively. The restricted net position of the College is for student group funds.

The restricted net position of the Foundation is for permanently restricted awards.

Note 17: Related Partv Transactions

During the fiscal years ended June 30, 2017 and 2016, the College recognized $2,156,127 and

52,009,127 in operating aid from the County of Warren.

Note l8: Unrestricted Net Position/(Deftcit)

The total Unrestricted Net Position at June 30,2017 and 2016, was ($366,449) and (5244,521)

respectively. A defrcit in the Unrestricted Net Position exists primarily due to the net pension

liability, and defened inflows and outflows from pensions of $5,465,233 and $5,369,408 in 2017

and 2016, respectively. This does not reflect that the College is in financial hardship and is a
permitted practice under Generally Accepted Accounting Principles.

Pre-GASB 68 -Net Position
GASB 68 - Pensions
Post GASB 68 -Net Pension

822,194,432
(5

"233)
s__16J29-199

Of the total Unrestricted Net Position, the following have been designated by the Board of
Trustees as of June 30,2017:

2017 2016

Desþated for Future Projects

Desþated for Building Projects

Desþated for Subsequent Fisçal Year

s 795,975

1,792,754

933"685

s 8&,299
1,521,469

935,847

s3,522,414 $3,32 1,615
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REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
(TJNATJDTTED)



College's proportion ofthe net pension liability

College's proportionate share ofthe net pension liability

College's covered employee payroll

College's proportionate share ofthe net pension liability as a

percentage ofits covered employee payroll

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage ofthe total pension

liability

4l

Fiscal Yea¡ Ending June 30,

2015 2016 2017

25610831400% 2.39193198000/o 0.02353133290/o

$ 4,795,048

1,289,532

$ $

WARREN COT]NTY COMMLINITY COLLEGE

REOUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION SCHEDULES

SCHEDULE OF COLLEGE'S PROPORTIONATE S}IARE OF THE NET PENSION LIABILITY
PUBLIC EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT SYSTEM

LAST THREE FISCAL YEARS
TINAUDITED

$$$

5,369,408

1,305,864

41l.l8o/o

6,969,306

1,373,086

507.57%371.84o/o

52.08o/o 47.93o/o 40.14o/o

Note : This schedule does not contain ten years of information as GASB No. 68 was implemented during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2015.
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WARREN COLJNTY COMMUNITY COLLEGE
REOUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION SCHEDT]LES

SCHEDULE OF COLLEGE'S CONTRIBUTIONS
PUBLIC EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT SYSTEM

LAST THREE FISCAL YEARS
LINAUDITED

Fiscal Year Ending June 30,

2015 2016 2017

Contractually required contribution

Contributions in relation to the contractually required contribution

Contribution defi ciency/(excess)

College's covered employee payroll

Contributions as a percentage ofcovered employee payroll

$ 2ll,l32 $

(21t,t32)

205,642 $

(205,642)

209,428

(20e,428)

$ -0- $ -0- -0-$

r,289,532

1595Yo

$ 1,263,741 $

16.71o/o

$ 1,305,864

16.04%

Note: This schedule does not contain ten years of information as GASB No. 68 was implemented during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2015.
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V/ARREN COUNTY COMMUNITY COLLEGE
NOTES TO REOUIRED STIPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2017

GTNAUDITED)

Changes of Benefit Terms:

There were no changes to benefit terms.

Changes in Assumptions:

The discount rate changed from 4-90% as of June 30,2015 to 3.98Yo as of June 30, 2016 n
accordance with Paragraph 44 of GASB Statement No. 67. The inflation rate changed from
3.04% as of June 30,2015 to 3.08 as of June 30,2016.
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Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and

on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements

P erformed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards

Independent Auditors' Report

The Honorable Chairman and
Members of the Board of Trustees

'Wa:ren County Communþ College
V/ashington, New Jersey

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America, the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Governrnent Auditing Standards issued by
the Comptroller General of the United States and the audit requirements prescribed by the Offrce of
Management and Budget, Department of the Treasury, State of New Jersey (the "Department"), the financial

statements of the Wa:ren County Community College, in the County of Warren (the "College") as of; and for
the fiscal year ended June 30, 2017, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively
comprise the College's basic financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated Decembet 22,

2017.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the College's internal control

over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the

circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose

of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the College's internal control. Accordingly, we do not

express an opinion on the effectiveness of the College's internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management

or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct,

misstatements on a timely basis. A material wealcness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in
internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the College's
financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant
deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in intemal control that is less severe than a
material weaknesso yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of the internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this

section and was not designed to identift all deficiencies in intemal control that might be material weaknesses

or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identiff any deficiencies in
internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that
have not been identified' 

www.nisivoccia.com
lndependent Member of BKR lnternational

Mount Arlington Corporate Center
200 Valley Road, Suite 300

Mt. Arlington, NJ 07856
973-328-1825 | 973-328-0507 Fax

Lawrence Business Park
1 1 Lawrence Road
Newton, NJ 07860

973-383-6699 | 97$383€555 Fax
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The Honorable Chairman and
Members of the Board of Trustees

'Warren County Community College
Page2

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the College's financial statements are free of
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,

contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the

determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those

provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The

results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported

under Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and

the result of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the College's internal control

or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Governrnent

Auditing Standards in considering the College's internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this

communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

Mount Arlington, New Jersey
December 22,2017 ÁJ,", L] P

NISIVOCCIA LLP
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@NlSlV0tHHLLpCerlified Public Accountonls & Advisors

Report on Compliance For Each Maþr Federal and State Program:
Report on Internal Control Over Compliance

Independent Auditors' Report

The Honorable Chairman and
Members of the Boa¡d of Trustees

Warren County Community College
Washington, New Jersey

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal and State Program

We have audited the Wa:ren County Community College (the "College's") compliance with the types of
compliance requirements described in the OMB Compliance Supplement and the New Jersey State Aid/
Grant Compliance Supplernent that could have a direct and material effect on each of the College's major
federal and state programs for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2017. The College's major federal and state
programs are identified in the summary of auditors' results section of the accompanying schedule of findings
and questioned costs.

Manøgement's Resp o ns ibílìly

Management is responsible for compliance with federal and state statutes, regulations, and the terms and
conditions its federal and state awards applicable to its federal and state programs.

A adítors' Re sp o nsìbílìty

Ourresponsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of the College's major federal and state
programs based on our audit of ttre types of compliance requirements referred to above. We conducted our
audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Audíting Standards, issued by
the Comptroller General of the United States; the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal
Regulations Part 200, Uniþrm Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements þr
Federol Awards ("Uniform Guidance") and New Jersey's OMB Circular 15-08, Single Audit Policy for
Recipients of Federal Grants, State Grants, and State Aid. Tttose standards, the Uniform Guidance and New
Jersey's OMB Circular 15-08 require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance

about whether noncompliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a
direct and material effect on a major federal or state program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a
test basis, evidence about the College's compliance with those requirements and performing such other
procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances.

We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major federal
and state program. However, our audit does not provide alegal determination of the College's compliance.

www.n¡sivocc¡a.com
lndependent Member of BKR lnternat¡onal

Mount Arlington Corporate Center
200 Valley Road, Suite 300

Mt. Arlington, NJ 07856
973-328-1825 | 973-328-0s07 Fax

Lawrence Business Park
l1 Lawrence Road
Newton, NJ 07860

973-383€699 | 973-3836555 Fax
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The Honorable Chairman and
Members of the Board of Trustees

Warren County Community College
Page2

Opìníon on Eøch Møjor Federøl and State Program

In our opinion, the College complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliance requirements

referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal and state programs

for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2017.

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance

Management of the College is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective intemal control over
compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to above. In planning and performing our
audit of complianceo we considered the College's internal control over compliance with the types of
requirements that could have a direct and material effect on each major federal and state program to
determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing an

opinion on compliance for each major federal and state program and to test and report on internal control
over compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance and NJOMB 15-08, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of intemal control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not
express an opinion on the effectiveness of the College's internal control over compliance.

A deJìciency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a

federal or state program on a timely basis. A material wealctess in internal control over compliance is a
deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a

reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal or
state program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in
internal control over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over
compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal or state program that is less severe than a
material weakness in internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those

charged with governance.

Our consideration of intemal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identit all deficiencies in internal control over

compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. We did not identiff any

deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses. However,
material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing
of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of the Uniform
Guidance or NJOMB 15-08. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

Mount Arlington, New Jersey
December 22,2017 A/, "rfæctâ 

/.LP
NISIVOCCIA LLP



WARREN COLÌNTY COMMUNITY COLLEGE
SCTIEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30. 2OI7

Name ofFederal Agency or
Deoartment/ Pass Throush Grantor/Cluster Title

U.S. Department of Education

Pass-Through NJ Department of Education

Student Financial Assistance Cluster:

U.S. Department of Education

U. S. DeparÍnent of Education

U.S. Department of Education

Total Student Financial Assistance Cluster

Federal Direct Student I¡ans Program:

U.S. Department of Education

u.s. Department of Education

Total Federal Direct Student l-oans Program

Total U.S. Depart¡nent of Education

Name of Grant

Carl D. Perkins Vocational
and Technical Education

Federal Pell Grant

Federal Supplemental Education

Opportunity Grant*

Federal Work Study Program*

Unsubsidized Direct

Subsidized Direct

c.F.D.A.
AccountNo.

84.048A

84.063

84.007

84.033

84.268

84.268

PSFS718007 7/1116-6130/17 $ 58,019 $ 57,848 $ s7,848

57.848 57,848

Grant
I.D. No

P063P004s78

P0074007578

P0334007578

Grant
Period

7t1t16-6t30t17

711/16-6/30/t7

7lUt6-61301t7

7nlt6-6t30/17

7/U16-6/30117

Award
Authori-
zations

Amount
Received

Fiscal Year
2017

Grant
Expenditures

Fiscal Year
2017

457,579

274.924

Amount
Provided to

Subrecipients

1,516,615 1,516,61s I,516,61s

24,984

27,982

24,984 24,984

27.982 27,982
I 569 581 1 569 581

N/A

N/A

457,579

274,924

457,579

274.924
732.503 732.503

2.3s9.932 2.3s9.932

s 2.3s9.932 s 2.3s9.932 S -0-Total Federal Awa¡ds

N/A - Not Available

SEE ACCOMPANYING NOTES TO SCMDULES OF E)GENDITURES OF FEDERAL AND STATE AWARDS

L¡r



WARREN COUNTY COMMLTNITY COLLEGE

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF STATE AWARDS
FISCAL YEAR ENDED JTINE 30. 2017

Name of State

Agency or Department Name of Grant

Department of Treasury

State Support Operational Costs

Altemate Benefit Plan

Commission on Higher Education

EOF Summer

EOF Article III

EOF Article IV Academic Year

Higher Education Assistance Authority

Tuition Aid Grant

NJ STARS

Total State Awards

Account
I.D. #

t7-100-082-2155-0ls

17-t00-082-2155-017

l7-100-074-1401

l7-100-074-1401

17-tO0-074-1401

17-100-074-2405-007

t57-100-074-2405-3 13

Grant
Period

7lt/t6-6130117

71U16-61301t7

7tv16-6130117

7tr/16-6130117

7nn6-6t30117

7nt16-6130117

7n|16-6/30/t7

Award
Authorizations

s 2,248,599

213,641

35,213

38,068

82,561

250,620

73,213

Amount
Received

Fiscal Year
2017

Grant
Expenditures
Fiscal Year

2017

$ $2,248,599

2t3.641
2,462,240

29,979

34,126

77.680
t4l 785

250,620

73"213

2,249,599

2t3,641
2.462.240

29,979

34,126

77.680
t4t 785

250,620

73,213

323,833 323.833

$ 2,927,858 s 2,927,858

SEE ACCOMPANYING NOTES TO SCHEDULES OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AND STATE AV/ARDS

o\
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WARREN COUNTY COMMTINITY COLLEGE

NOTES TO THE SCHEDULES OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AND STATE AWARDS
FISCAL YEARENDED JT.JNE 30.2017

Note 1: Basis of Presentation

The accompanying schedules of expenditures of federal and state awards present the activþ of federal and
state award programs of the Warren County Community College (the "College") under programs of the
federal and state governments for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2016. The information in these schedules is
presented in accordance with the requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform
Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, ønd Audit Requirements þr Federal Awards (*Uniform
Guidance") and New Jersey's OMB Circular 15-08, Single Audit Policy for Recipients of Federal Grants,
State Grants and State Aid. Because the schedules present only a selected portion of the operations of the
College, they are not intended to and do not present the financial position, changes in net position or cash
flows of the College.

Note 2: Summary of Sipnificant Accounting Policies:

Expenditures reported on the accompanying schedules of expenditures of federal and state awards are
reported on the accrual basis of accounting. This basis of accounting is described in Note 1 to the College's
basic financial statements. Such expenditures are recognized following the cost principles contained in the
Uniform Guidance, wherein certain types of expenditures are not allowed or are limited as to reimbursement.
Negative amounts, if any, shown on the Schedules represents adjustments or credits made in the normal
course of business to amounts reports as expenditures in prior years.

Note 3: Indirect Cost Rate

The College has elected to use the 10 percent de minimis indirect cost rate as allowed under the Uniform
Guidance.

Note 4: Relationship to Basic Financial Statements

There is an adjusfrnent needed to reconcile the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal and State Awards to the
basic financial statements. The adjustment for federal awards is ($1,177,577) and the adjustment for state
awards is (52,273,712). The adjusÍnent is necessary because the College must reflect the entire drawdown
amounts on the Schedules of Expenditures of Federal and State Awards. In the basic financial statements,
the College is only reflecting the revenue and expenses pertaining to the College, and is not accounting for
awards that pass through the College and are refunded to the students.

Note 5: Relationship to Federal and State Financial Reports

Amounts reported in the accompanying schedules agree with the amounts reported in the related federal and
state financial reports.
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WARREN COUNTY COMMUNITY COLLEGE

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND OUESTIONED COSTS
FISCAI YEARENDED JUNE 3O.2OI7

Summary of Auditors' Results:

The Independent Auditors' Report expresses an unmodified opinion on the financial statements of the
College.

There rvere no material weaknesses or significant deficiencies disclosed during the audit of the financial
statements as reported in the Independent Auditors' Report on Internal Control Over Financial
Reporting and on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Perþrmed
in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards.

No instances of noncompliance material to the financial statements of the District which would be
required to be reported in accordance with Government Auditing Standards, were disclosed during the
audit.

There were no material weaknesses or significant deficiencies in internal control over major federal and
state programs disclosed during the audit as reported inthe Independent Auditors' Report on Compliance
For Each Major Federøl and State Program; Report on Internal Control Over Compliance.

The auditor's report on compliance for the major federal and state programs for the District expresses an
unmodified opinion on all major federal and state programs.

The audit did not disclose any audit frndings which are required to be reported in accordance with New
Jersey's OMB Circular 15-08 or 2 CFR 200.516(a) of the Uniform Guidance.

The College's programs tested as major federal and state programs for the current fiscal year consisted of
the following:

State Granl
CFDANumber

Grant

Period

Award
Amount

Budgetary

Expenditures

State:

State Support

Operational Costs

Federal:

Student Financial Assistance Cluster:

Federal Pell Grant

Federal Supplemental Education

Opportunity Grant

Federal College Work Study
Federal Direct Student Loans Progtam

l7-100-082-
21,55-0rs

84.007

84.033

84.268

7l|t/t6-6/30n7
7l0Ilt6-6130117

7/0U16-61301r7

24,984

27,982

732,503

24,984

27,982

732,503

7l0vt6-6130tr7s2,248,59952,248,599

84.063 7lÙU16-6130/17 1,516,615 1,516,615
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WARREN COUNTY COMMTINITY COLLEGE
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND OUESTIONED COSTS

FISCAL YEARENDED JUNE 30.2017
(Continued)

Summarv of Auditor's Results: (Cont'd)

- The threshold used for distinguishing between Type A and Type B programs for both federal and state
programs was $750,000.

- The College determined to be a "low-risk" auditee for both federal and state progr¿lms.

Findings and Ouestioned Costs for Federal Awards:

- The audit did not disclose any findings or questioned costs for federal awards as defined in 2 CFR
200.516(a) of the Uniform Guidance.

Findings and Ouestioned Costs for State Awards:

- The audit did not disclose any findings or questioned costs for state awards as defined in 2 CFR
200.516(a) of the Uniform Guidance and New Jersey's OMB Circular 15-08.



10

V/ARREN COUNTY COMMUNITY COLLEGE
SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS

FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30.2OI7

Status of Prior Year Findings:

There were no findings or questioned costs noted during the audit of the fiscal year ended June 30, 2016.


